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CORPORATE
INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Girish Kousgi is the Managing Director
(“MD”) and Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQO”) of PNB Housing Finance Limited.
He holds an executive master’s diploma in
business administration from Indian
Institute of Commerce and Trade. He has
over 21 years of experience in the financial
services sector. Previously, he was
associated with Can Fin Homes Limited as
MD and CEO, Tata Capital Financial
Services Limited as head retail - credit &
risk, IDFC Bank Limited as executive vice
president and ICICI Bank Limited as joint
general manager.

Mr. Vinay Gupta is the Chief Financial
Officer (“CFO”) of the PNB Housing
Finance Limited. He is responsible for
overall finance, treasury and investor
relations function in our Company. He has
passed the examination for a bachelor’s
degree in commerce from University of
Delhi. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.
Previously, he was associated with SBI
Cards and Payment Services Limited, GE
Capital Services Limited and Price
Waterhouse.

Ms Deepika Gupta Padhi is a passionate
and proficient finance professional with 18
years of experience in multiple sectors viz
BFSI, Pharma, Oil & Gas and Consumer.
Over time she has worked and built strong
understanding in the areas of Investor
Relations, Treasury, Fund Raising, Due
diligence, MIS etc. She currently Head
Treasury and Investor Relations and is
responsible for the capital raise activity at
PNB Housing Finance, 4th largest housing
finance company of India. She has worked
with reputed companies like Aurobindo
Pharma, Cairn India, Radico Khaitan, SPA
Capital etc.

She has been recognised as one of the
“India’s top 100 women in Finance 2019”
and has also been conferred with
“Business Excellence & Innovative Best
Practices Academia Award - 2019” by New
Delhi Institute of Management.

Mr. Amit Singh is the Chief People Officer
at PNB Housing Finance Limited, is a
seasoned HR professional who brings in 18
years of rich and diverse experience in
building performance-led, competitive
teams for the successful functioning of
fast-growing organizations. Amit has
diverse expertise across businesses like
Asset Management, Investment Banking,
Securities, Wholesale Banking, Project
Finance, Risk, Private Equity, Shared
Services and Information Technology in
his elaborated career so far. He is known
for his extensive experience in leading HR
transformation journeys and creating
value for Business enterprises.

Mr. Amit plays a crucial role within PNB
Housing Finance leadership team in
supporting the organization’s growth and
managing People strategy for the
Company. He leads the HR function, which
includes learning & development, talent
acquisition, developing people-centric

organizational development priorities
including, talent management &
development, coaching, capability

building, performance & reward strategy,
HR digital strategy and sustaining an
inclusive work culture for business growth.
Amit is also spearheading the CSR
initiatives for the company and forwarding
its agenda of nation building.

Prior to joining PNB Housing Finance, Mr.
Amit was associated with prominent
financial institutions, including SBI Mutual
Fund where he led the HR department and
IDFC Bank, where he was Director &
Business HR Head. Mr. Amit also served
stints at leading companies such as TCS
and Blue Star InfoTech. Amit holds an
MBA degree in Human Resource from
ICFAI Business School, Mumbai.

Regd. Office: Flat No 207 & 209, 2nd Floor Antriksh Bhawan, 22,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg New Delhi - 110001
CIN: U67200DL2017PLC322468, Phone: 011-23735678, Website: www.phfl.com



DIRECTORS' REPORT business of rendering of professional/

consultancy services including sourcing,
marketing, promoting, publicizing,
advertising, soliciting, distributing any kind
of financial instruments or all classes of
insurance product or syndicated credit
products or investment products or wealth
products to various customers.

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors’ have pleasure in presenting
the Sixth (6th) Directors’ Report on the
Company’s business and  operations,
together with the Audited Financial
Statements of PHFL Home Loans and
Services Limited (“the Company/ PHFL”) for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023
(“During the Financial Year”).

The Company has already floated as a
distribution arm for PNB Housing offering
doorstep services to prospective customers.

PHFL offers doorstep services to provide as
a distributor of housing loan, property
search services and loan against property to
individuals and corporate bodies for home
purchase, loan for construction repair,
upgradation of home, loan for compound
space, loan against residence and
commercial property etc. Apart from Home
loan products & property services, company
also provides financial solutions to
individuals covering fixed deposits.

Overview and Performance and State of
Company’s Affairs

PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited
(’the Company”) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of PNB Housing Finance Limited
(“PNBHFL™).

PHFL was incorporated on August 22, 2017
with an object to get engaged in the

Financial Performance Summary & Key Highlights

Financial year ended Financial year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(X in Lakh) (X in Lakh)
Total Revenue 25,180.91 23,411.71
Total Expenditure 23,349.97 20,941.05
Profit before tax 1,830.94 2,470.66
Current Tax 438.56 654.10
Deferred Tax (2.80) 3.37
Tax related to earlier years 0.87 51
Profit after tax 1,394.31 1,808.08
Other Comprehensive Income 46.64 68.28
Total Comprehensive Income 1,440.95 1,876.36

The Company has no subsidiary, associate and/ or joint venture companies. Thus, the Company
is not required to report on the performance and financial position of any such companies.



Share Capital

Presently the Authorized Share Capital of
the Company is Rs. 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees
One Crore) divided into 10,00,000 (Ten
Lakh) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each.

The paid up Share Capital of the Company is
Rs. 25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Lakh)
divided into 2,50,000 (Two Lakhs Fifty
Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten) each. During the Financial Year, there is
no change in the Share Capital of the
Company.

The Company has neither issued equity
shares with differential rights as to dividend,
voting or otherwise, nor has it issued sweat
equity shares to any employees.

Dividend
Your Directors have not recommended any
dividend for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2023.
Reserves
The Company has not transferred any

amount to the Reserves of the Company for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

Change in Nature of Business, If Any

During the Financial Year under review,
there has been no Material change in the
nature of business of the Company.

Deposits

Your Company has not issued any invitation
nor accepted any deposits from the public
during the Financial Year ended March 31,
2023.

Human Resource

As on March 31, 2023, there were 2952
employees (including 144 contractual
employees) in the Company. During the
Financial Year, various training sessions were
conducted for the employees of the
Company to upskill them and enhance their
productivity.

During the Financial Year, the HR continued

to timely onboard experienced resources
across all locations, imparted functional and
system training to develop productive
resources for all the functional teams. The
Learning and Development (L&D) team has
been continuously endeavouring to identify
the current and future skills requirements of
the organisation and create flexible learning
interventions to meet the diverse needs of
the workforce.

Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the provisions of Section
188 of the Act and rules made thereunder,
the transactions entered with related parties
are in the ordinary course of business and on
an arm’s length pricing basis, the details of
which are included in the notes forming part
of the financial statements.

The particulars of contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Act
in the prescribed Form AOC-2 are given in
“Annexure 1”.

Statutory Auditors

B. R. Maheswari & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration
No.:00T1035N/N50050), were appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
tenure of 5 (five) years, to hold office from
the conclusion of this 1st Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 6th
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Tenure of 5 (five) years as Statutory
Auditors concludes at this ensuing AGM.

The company has received confirmation
from the Statutory Auditors to the effect
that their appointment, if made, will be
accordance with the limits specified under
the Act and the firm satisfies the criteria
specified in Section 141 of the Act read with
Rule 4 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its
Meeting held on June 06, 2023 has
approved the re-appointment of B. R.
Maheswari & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration
No.:001035N/N50050), as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company pursuant to
Section 139 of the Act for a second term 3
(three) years to hold office from the



conclusion of the 6th (Sixth) AGM till the
conclusion of 9th (Ninth) AGM of the
Company to be held in the year 2026,
subject to approval by the Members at the
ensuing AGM.

The Board recommends to seek consent of
its Members at the ensuing AGM on
re-appointment of Statutory Auditors for
tenure of 3 (three) years, to examine and
audit the accounts of the Company during
the said period.

During the Financial Year, remuneration of
the Statutory Auditor’s was INR 9,24,000/-
for Statutory Audit, Limited Review Report
and Tax Audit (excluding out of pocket
expenses and applicable taxes).

Auditors’ Report

The report of the Statutory Auditor forms
part of this Annual Report. The said Report
does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Frauds Reported by Auditor

During the Financial Year ended March 31,
2023, the Auditors did not report any matter
under Section 143(12) of the Act, therefore
no detail is required to be disclosed under
Section 134(3) (ca) of the Act.

Cost Auditors

During the Financial Year, maintenance of
cost records as specified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder were not applicable on the
Company. Accordingly, the Company is not
required to make any such accounts and
records.

Board of Directors

As on March 31, 2023 and as on the date of
the Report, the Board of Directors of the
Company comprised of Non-Executive
Directors namely: Mr. Girish Kousdgi,
Chairman, Ms. Deepika Gupta Padhi, Mr.
Amit Singh and Mr. Vinay Gupta.

Following changes occurred in the composition of the Board of

Directors of the Company during the Financial Year:

Particulars of change

S.No. Name (Appointment/Cessation/ Effective Date
Change in Designation) of change

Mr. Pankaj Fakirchand Jain . . .

1. DIN: 09428241 Change in Designation August 17, 2022
Mr. Amit Singh . . .

2. DIN: 09474114 Change in Designation August 17, 2022
Mr. Hardayal Prasad .

3. DIN: 08024303 Cessation October 20, 2022
Mr. Girish Kousgi Appointment as Additional

4 DIN: 08524205 Director and Chairman October 22, 2022

5. Mr. Pankaj Fakirchand Jain Cessation November 24, 2022

DIN: 09428241

6 Mr. Vinay Gupta
' DIN: 10161211

Appointment as Additional Director

May 12, 2023

*The Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 31, 2023 has appointed Mr. Vinay Gupta
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from the date of allotment of Director
Identification Number (“DIN”). Further, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
has allotted the DIN to Mr. Vinay on May 12, 2023.



None of the Directors of your Company are
disqualified as per the provisions of Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Directors of the Company have made
necessary disclosures as required under
various provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

Further, during the Financial Year, the
Company was not required to appoint Key
Managerial Personnel.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act,

Mr. Amit Singh (DIN: 09474114) liable to
retire by rotation and offers himself for
re-appointment at the ensuing AGM.

Number of Meetings of the Board of

Directors

During the Financial Year ended March 31,
2023, the Board of Directors of the
Company duly met 5 (Five) times i.e. on
April 20, 2022, July 22, 2022, October 22,
2022, January 21, 2023 and March 31, 2023.

The attendance of Directors in the Board Meeting are as under:

Number of Meetings No. of
Name of Director held in the financial year/  Board meeting
during his/her tenure attended
Mr. Hardayal Prasad 2 2
Ms. Deepika Gupta Padhi 5 5
Mr. Pankaj Fakirchand Jain 3 2
Mr. Girish Kousgi 3 3
Mr. Amit Singh 5 5

The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed

under the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

In compliance with Section 135 of the Act
read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amend-
ed, the Company has established a Corpo-
rate Social Responsibility (‘{CSR’) Committee
which have been established as a part of the
best corporate governance practices and are
in compliance with the requirements of the
relevant provisions of applicable laws and
statutes.

The Company undertakes its CSR activities
through its dedicated arm, Pehel Foundation
and other partnering agencies. During the
Financial Year, the Company has spent a sum
of INR 36,80,850/- on various CSR activities.
Out of total allocation for Financial Year, a
sum of INR 59,19,150/- was transferred to
CSR unspent account of Financial Year
22-23 to carry out ongoing CSR activities in
the subsequent FYs as per the CSR rules.

The CSR Committee has formulated and
recommended to the Board, a CSR Policy in
line with the provision of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 & Companies (Corpo-
rate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014
(as amended time to time) which provides
the overview of projects or programs and
the guiding principles for selection, imple-
mentation and monitoring of the CSR activi-
ties, which has been approved by the Board.

The Annual Report on CSR activities in the
format prescribed in Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as
amended is attached as “Annexure 2”.

Composition of CSR Committee

As on March 31, 2023 and as on the date of
the Report, the Members of the CSR
Committee comprised of Ms. Deepika Gupta
Padhi and Mr. Amit Singh.



Following changes occurred in the composition of the CSR Committee

of the Company during the Financial Year:

Particulars of change

S.No. Name (Appointment/ Effective Date
Cessation) of change
1. Mr. Amit Singh Appointed October 22, 2022
2. Mr. Pankaj Fakirchand Jain Ceased November 24, 2022

Meeting of the CSR Commiittee

During the Financial Year under review, Four
4 Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee Meetings were held on July 22,
2022, September 24, 2022, December 30,
2022 and March 24, 2023.

The attendance of Members in the CSR Committee Meeting is as under:

Number of meetings of

. Designation/Nature CSR Commiittee
S:No. Name of the Director of Directorship held during  attended during
the year the year
1. Ms. Deepika Gupta Padhi Non-Executive Director 4 4
2. Mr. Pankaj Fakirchand Jain* Non-Executive Director 2 2
3. Mr. Amit Singh” Non-Executive Director 2 2

~ Mr. Amit Singh was appointed as a Member w.e.f. October 22, 2022
*Mr. Pankaj Fakirchand Jain ceased to be the Member w.e.f. November 24, 2022

Secretarial Auditors and their Audit
Report

During the Financial Year, the Company was
not required to appoint Secretarial Auditor
as per the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) of the
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the
best of their knowledge confirm that:

i) In the preparation of the annual
accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with

proper explanation relating to material
departures;

ii) The Directors have selected such
accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company as
on March 31, 2023 and of the profits of
the Company for the year ended March
31, 2023;

iii) The Directors have taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the



Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) They have prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

v) They have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars Regarding Conservation of
Energy, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Even though operations of the Company are
not energy intensive, the Management has
been highly conscious of the importance of
conservation of energy and technology
absorption at all operational levels and
efforts are made in this direction on a
continuous basis. In view of the nature of
activities which are being carried on by the
Company, the particulars as prescribed
under Section 134(3)(Mm) of the Act read
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of
energy and technology absorption are not
applicable to the Company and hence have
not been provided.

Total foreign exchange earnings and
expenditure by the Company during the
Financial Year is Nil.

Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal

sexual harassment.

This Policy extends to all employees of
Company, whether on probation or
permanent, including those on deputation,
contract, part-time or working as
Consultants, trainees, unless explicitly stated
otherwise. The Policy is also applicable to
any vendor resource working in the
company premises, including extended work
place.

The Company on a regular basis sensitises
its employees on the prevention of sexual
harassment at the workplace through
workshops, group meetings, online training
modules and awareness programmes.
During the Financial Year, there were no
complaints with the ICC as on March 31,
2023.

Annual Return

The Annual Return for Financial Year 2022- 23
as per provisions of the Act and Rules thereto,
is available on the Company’s website at
https.//www.phfl.com/investor-relations/

Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary, Joint
Venture and Associate Companies

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of
PNB Housing Finance Limited. Further, the
Company does not have any subsidiary, joint
venture or associate company.

Guarantees or

Particulars of Loans,

Investments

against Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Workplace Policy

The Company is committed to provide a
protective environment at workplace for all
its women employees. To ensure that every
woman employee is treated with dignity and
respect and as mandate under “The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013” the Company has in place Prevention
of Sexual Harassment at Workplace Policy in
line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Work Place
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 and rules made thereunder. An Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) is in place as
per the requirements of the said Act to
redress complaints received regarding

During the Financial Year, the Company has
not made any loans, investments,
guarantees and security which are covered
under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Act. As on March 31, 2023 the investment in
the books is amounting to INR
8,52,49,000/-.

Material Changes and Commitment if any
affecting the Financial Position of the
Company occurred between the end of the
Financial Year to which this Financial
Statements relate and the date of the

report

There are no material changes and
commitments affecting the financial position
of the Company occurred between the end
of the financial year to which this financial



statement relates and date of this report.
Risk Management Framework

Our risk centred approach, along with
Information Security policies and
procedures support are well-established
security practices for protection of business
information. With ‘defence in depth’ as
guiding principle, we have implemented
multi-layers controls for identification,
prevention, detection and response to

various cyber security threats we face today.

Particulars of Employees

Pursuant to provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of
Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration) Rules, 2014, the details of
employees are required to provide as to this
report.

There were no employees employed
throughout the year, who were in receipt of
remuneration of 1.02 crore or more per
annum.

Significant and Material Orders passed by
Courts/ Regulators

There has been no significant and material
order passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status
and the Company’s future operations.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has put in place adequate
policies and procedures to ensure that the
system of internal financial control
commensurate with the size and nature of
the Company’s business.

These systems provide a reasonable
assurance in respect of providing financial
and operational information, complying with

Date: June 06, 2023
Place: New Delhi

applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets
of the Company, prevention and detection of
frauds, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records and ensuring
compliance with Company’s policies.
Proceeding under Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the Financial Year, the Company has
not made any application, or no proceeding
is pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

One-time settlement

During the Financial Year, the Company has
not entered into one-time settlement for any
loans availed from the Banks or Financial
Institutions.

Compliance of Secretarial Standards of
ICSI

Pursuant to section 118 (0) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
complied with the Secretarial Standards i.e.
SS-1 and SS-2 related to the Board Meetings
and General Meetings issued by the Institute
of Companies Secretaries of India during the
Financial Year.

Acknowledgments

The Directors thank the Customers, Vendors
and Bankers for their continued support
during this year. The Directors also extend
their appreciation to the employees for their
continuing support and unstinting efforts in
ensuring an excellent all-round operational
performance. We appreciate the
contribution made by our employees at all
levels. The growth of the Company is made
possible by their hard work, solidarity,
co-operation and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of
PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited

sd/-

Girish Kousgi
Chairman

DIN: 08524205
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B R MAHESWARI &CO LLP M-118, Connaught Circus,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS New Delhi-lIO00!
Phone : +91 (1) 4340 2222
Email: brmc@brmco.com

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited (“the Company™), which
comptise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of changes in equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hercinafter referred to as “the financial stacements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a twue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under secton 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company i1 accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chattered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. 'The other information comptises the
information included in the Company’s Board’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditot’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misscated. 1f, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact with those charge with the governance.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

(Cofmyct
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Chatged with Governance for the Financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance wich the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregulatities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimares that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that wete operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Tn preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directots cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, ot
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Out objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the andit. We also:

e Identify and assess the tisks of material misstatemenc of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures tesponsive to those risks, and obtain audic evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis fot our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one tesulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenrtional omissions,
mistepresentations, ot the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedutes that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also tesponsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e [livaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
ancertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a gotng concetn.



¢ Dvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achieves fair
presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial staterments that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probabie that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
infiuenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

{1 plarning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal conteol that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those chatged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and ate therefore the key audit mattess. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation prectudés public disclosure abour the matier or
wher, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
COMMUMICAHOn,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Govetnment of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of secdon 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure T’ a statement on the mattets
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3} of the Act, based on our audit we ceport that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended.

(&) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director inr terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

{fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘1P,

{g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:



ili.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 28 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-tesm contracts including any derivative contracts for which there were
any material foresecable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(2) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other soutces or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons of entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliet, as disclosed in the notes to
the accounts , no funds have been received by the Company from any petsons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {a) and

(b) contain any matetial misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared ot paid any dividend during the year and not proposed final dividend for the

year. Therefore, reporting in this regard is not applicable to the company.

i. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended, which provides for books of

VI, .

account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting software used by the
Company, is applicable to the Company only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the
teporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, is

currently not applicable.

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 5o managerial

remuneration has been paid or provided by the Company during the year

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 001035N/N500050

gt
Akshay Maheshwari

Partner

Membership No.504704 |
UDIN: 23504704 BGQIALKZ2455
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 10, 2023



Annexure I’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
even date)

) (@  (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property plant and equipment.

(B) The Cormnpany has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by
which property, plant and equpment are verified once in twe years, which in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of propesty, plant and equipment. No material
discrepancies wete noticed on such verification.

(c) 'The Company does not have any immovable properties, and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

{e) According to information and explanations given by the management and based on examination of the
tecords, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and
rules made thereunder. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(1j(e) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

if) {a) The company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any inventory.
Therefore, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a} of the order are not applicable to the company

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crote
tupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of secutity of curtent asset, and
accordingly clause 3(ii)(b) of the order are not applicable.

i) According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee ot secutity or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties coveted in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act for the
financial year 2023-22, and accordingly clause 3(ii)(a), (b}, (c), (d), (¢) and (f) of the order are not applicable.

1v) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
tecords of the Company, the Company has not made any loans, investments, guarantees and security in
respect of sections 185 and 186 of the companies Act. 2013, accordingly requirement to report on clause 3



Vi)

vii)

wiil}

(ix)

@

(®)

()

(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amount which are deemed to be deposited within
the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 70 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extend
applicable. Accordingly, requirement to tepott on clause 3 (v} of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central
Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has generally been regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to
it. According ro the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2023 for a petiod of more than six months from the
date they become payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and hased on our exatnination of the records of
the Company by us, there is no statutoty dues referred to in sub- clause (a} on account of any dispute except
the following.

| Name of | Nature of disputed | Amount Period to which | Forum where
Statue dues (in Lalkh) it . Dispute is
Relates pending
Income Income Tax Demand/ 3079.86 AY- 2020-21 Assessing officer i
Tax Act Penalty/ Interest
Income Income Tax Demand/ 26.76 | AY- 2020-21 CIT {(Appeals) '
Tax Act | Penalty/ Interest

According to the information and explanations given to us, no income has been suttendered or disclosed,
which is not recorded in the books of accounts, during the year found in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, we ate of the opinion that the Company has not
availed any loan from the financial institutions, banks or debenture holders. Also, the Company did not have
any outstanding loans and borrowings from government during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated
in clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company



(x)

{xti)
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©
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®)

()

(b)

©

According to the information and explanations given to vs and on the basis of our audit procedures, the
Cotnpany has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the
company does not have any outstanding term loan at any point of time during the year, hence clause 3(ix)(c)
of the Oxder is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we tepott that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term putposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture, hence
clause 3(ix){g) is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, the Company
does not have any subsidiaties, associates or joint venture, hence clause 3{ix)(f) is not applicable to the
company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer ot further public offer
including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company,

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not allotted Preferential shares {section 62) or raised money by way of
Ptivate placement (section 42) or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible), during the
year.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of matetial fraud by the Company or on
the Company.

During the course of cur examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not tequired to be filed with the Central Government,
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Duuing the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not received whistle-blower complaints during the year, hence the reporting
under clause 3(xi}(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.



{xiil)

(xiv)

(xvi)

{xvi)

(xvii]

{xIX)

(xx)

(@)

(b)

()

(b)

(@

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, all transactions with the related parties ate in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The repotts of the Internal Auditor issued till date for the period under audit have been considered by us.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors ot persons connected
with him, Accotdingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required ti be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial or Housing finance activities during the year.

The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by management of the company, the group has no
CICs as patt of Group. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi){d] of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvii) of the Ordes are not applicable to the
Company.

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the yeat, hence para 3 clause (xviif) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial asscts and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit repott
and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one yeat from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get dischatged by the Company as and when they
fzll due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the company does not have any amount
remaining unspent under section 135(5) of the Act.



(b) The company bas transferred the amount of corporate social responsibility remaining unspent under
subsection {5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to ongoing project/(s) to a special account in compliance
with the provision of subsection (6) of section 135 of the Act. Details are given below:

[ Financial Year | Amount to be

spent in
accordance
with section
135(5)

2022-2023 96.00 |

{xxl)

Amount remaining

unspent as at the
year end to be
transferred to
special account
under section
135(6)

59.19

company, foint venture during the financial year.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 001035N/N500050

Wﬁ/& )&
Akshay Maheshwari
Pariner _.:

Membership No: 504704
UDIN: 23504704BGQEZK2455
I | A

Place: Mew Delhi
Date; May 10, 2023

Amount transferred | Amount  not |
to  special  bank | transferred  to |
account under | special bank
section 135(6), within | account under
30days from end of | section 135(6),
FY (or tll the date of | within ~ 30days

from end of FY

tll the date of

audit eport
59.19 -

audit report)

Clause XXI of this report fs not applicable, since the company does not have a subsidiary, associate



Annexure ’IT’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements™ of ous report of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i} of sub section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial tepotting of PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

‘The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT”). These tesponsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opetating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's. intetnal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financiai Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI
and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Tinancial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain teasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivensss of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the finanecial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accotdance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide rezsonable assurance



regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management overside of controls, material misstatements cue to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any cvaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reposting may become
inadequate because of changes in condidons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 001035N/N500050

b2

Akshay Maheshwari

Partner

Membership No: 504704
UDIN: 23504704BGQIZII'~:£2.%55
Place: New Delhi \
Date: May 10, 2023



PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Note As at As at
Particulars No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(¥ in Lacs) {Tin Lacs)
ASSETS l
Property, plant and equipment 3 14,49 4.40
Right of use 3 47 91 67.63
Other intangible assets 4 26.06 27.31
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 13.78 16.98
Other non current financial assets 8 0.67 0.67
Total non-current assets I 102.91 11149
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 7 852,49 1,093.36
Trade receivables 8 2,740.69 5,379.52
Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,041.96 10,124.89
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 10 932244 -
Current tax assets {net) 11 1,245,49 974.47
Other current assets 12 138.47 127.60
Total current assets 15,341.54 17,699.84 |
|Total Assets 16,444.45 17,811.33
|[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES =
Equity
Equity share capital 13 25.00 25.00
Other equity 13,021.49 11,580.54
Total equity T 13,046.49 11,605.54
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 14 35,79 59.10
Total non-current liabilities 35,79 59.10 |
Current liabilities |
Financial liabilities I
Trade payables 15
Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and -
Small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises 2578 3,917.25 |
and Small enterprises
Lease liabilities 14 23.31 20.98
Other financial liabilities 15a 1,918.17 1,775.33
Cther current liabilities 16 362.58 4211.52 I
Provisions 17 32,33 21.61
Total current liabilities 2,38217 6,146.69
Total liabilities 2,397.96 6,206.789 |
Total Equity and Liabilities | 15,444.45 17,8611.33 |
Qverview and significant accounting policies 1&2

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

For B.R. Maheswari and Co. LLP
Chartered Accountaris
FR No : 001035N/N500050

e

Akshay Maheshwari
Partner
Membership No: 504704

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2023

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directars

Girish Kousgi

Director
CIN: 08524205

s

fﬂ ﬂl;l[

it Sing

Director
DIN: 09474114



PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
! {Z in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
INCOME
Revenue from operations 18 24,448 87 23,075.40
Cther income 19 732.04 336.31
Total income 25,180.91 2341171
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expenses 20 11,586.00 9,021.08
Finance costs 21 5.67 7.16
Other expenses 22 11,718.72 11,872.85
Depreciation and amortisation 23 35.58 39.96
Total expenses 23,349.97 20,941.05
Profit before Tax 1,830.94 2,470.66
Tax expenses 24
a, Current tax 438.56 654.10
b. Deferred tax (2.80) 3.37
c. Tax related to earlier years 0.87 511
Total tax expense 436.63 662.58
Profit for the year — 1,384.31 1,808.08
Other comprehensive income
a. ltems that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss - -
b. Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plan {i) 62.32 91,25
Tax effect (ii) 15.68 22.97
Net (i-ii) 46.64 68.28
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (a+b) 46.64 68.28
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.440.95 1,876.36
Earnings per equity share of [face value of ¥ 10/~ each fully paid up)
Basic (%) 25 557,72 723.23
Diluted () 25 857.72 723.23
Overview and significant accounting policies 1&2

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. Maheswari and Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants = ,fﬁélﬁ__ %

FR No : 001035N/NS00050 A o
..'l .-F A\ '\\,
= (i VRIS |
,}J‘\-{.l"‘tf g Conn. Circus e |I
v 2\ Naw Deini / x
"\% ‘!_.mé’.",-

Akshay Maheshwari R et 4

B et
Partner - é:ﬂ'—""

Membership No: 504704

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

>

Girish Kousgi

Director
DIN: 08524205

M7

Amit Singl
Director
DIN: 08474114




PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

A. Equity share capital

Amount
{¥in Lacs)
As at March 31, 2021 25,00
Change in equity share capital during the period -
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors =
Restated balance as at March 31, 2022 25.00
Change in equity share capital during the year -
Changes in equity share carital due to prior period ervors -
|Restated balance as at March 31, 2023 25.00 |
B. Cther equity
Reserves and Surplus
Retained earning”

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{¥in Lacs) {T in Lacs)

Balance as at beginning of the year 11,580.54 9,704.18
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated balance at beginning of the year 11,580.54 9,704.18 |
Profit for the year 1,394.31 1,808.08
Remeasurement on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 46.64 68.28
|Balance as at the end of the year 13,021.49 11.680.54

*Retained earnings are profits earned by the Company after transfer te general reserve and payment of dividend to shareholders.

The nates are an integral part of the financial statements,

In terms of our report of even date
For B.R. Maheswari and Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

FR No : 001035N/NS0D0050 / FeONARS g5

ff%‘g} VO W
lef w18 Aol
IkmlConn. Circus ||

LTy
Akshay Maheshwari * § New Delhi éf
Partner Wb &@‘\
Membership No: 504704 med Aol

Ptace: New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

s
o AN

Girish Kousgi
Director
DIN: 08524205

Amit Si
Director
CIN 09474114



PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(% in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before tax for the year 1.830.94 2,470.66
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amaortisation 39.58 39.96
Net profit on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (39.83) {228.00}
Interest on lease 5.67 7.16
Provisicn for doubtful debts {net) (4.23) -
Interest on income tax refund {54.23) -
Bad debts writien off 3.50 -
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for {(increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables 2,639.56 165.59
Cther assets (current and non-current) (9,270.99) 136.06
Adjustments for increase/{decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (3,891.47) 2,357.16
Provisions (current and non-current) 10,72 {633.05)
GCther financial liabilities 142.84 783.11
Other current liabilities {48.94) {119.85)
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations {8,636.88) 4,978.80
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 1671.90) (1 3_90._&1‘
Net Cash {used in)/ generated from operating activities (9,308.78) 3,587.96
. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (including
Intangible assets under development) (28.20) -
Purchase of investments (5,730.00} (22,810.00)
Sale of investment 6 010.70 23.159.91
Net Cash generated/{used in) frem investment activities 252.50 349.H1
. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease liability 126.65] 124.20)
Net Cash (used in) / generated from financing activities {26.65) (24.20)
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents {a+b+c) 19,082.93) 3,913.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,124.89 6,212.92
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1041.96 10.126.59
Net (decrease) fincrease of cash and cash equivalents during the period (9,082.93) 3,913.67
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts - 41.44 54.09
Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months 1,000.52 10,070.80
1,041.96 10,124.89

Note : Figures in bracket denotes application of cash.

(&)} Current taxes paid are freated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.
{b) The above Cash Flow Statement is prepared as per "Indirect method” specified in Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

In terms of our report of even date

For B.R. Maheswari and Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants
FR No : 001035N/N500050

(=
PG
Akshay Maheghwari
Partner
Membership No: 504704
Place: New Delhi
Date : May 10, 2023

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors

W Y .)uf;z/

Girish Kousgi
Director
DIN: 08524205

[ .
ﬂﬁ_,,u{

Antit'Sing

Director

DIN: 09474114
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

OVERVIEW

Overview
PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited (CIN:US7200DL2017PLC322468) ("PHFL”" or "the Company”) was incorporated on
August 22, 2017, as a wholly owned subsidiary of PNB Housing Finance Limited.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering of professional /consuitancy services including sourcing,
marketing, promoting, publicising, advertising, soliciting, distributing any kind of financial instruments or classes of insurance
product, syndicated credit products , investment products and wealth products. The Company's registered office is at 207 & 209,
2nd flcor, Antriksh Bhawan, 22, K.G.Marg, New Delhi -110001.

The financial statements are apgroved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on May 10,
2023,

Basis of pr tion / t of compli

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value of financial instruments held for
trading, all of which have béen measured at fair value.

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accotinting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies

(Ingian Accaunting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time te time, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,

The standalonie financial statemenis are prepared in accordance with provision contained in section 129 of the Companies Act
2013, read with Division Il of Schedule lil as amended from fime to time. The Statement of i;asn Flows has been prepared and
presentad as per Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows".

Functional and presentation currency

These financial siatemenis are presented in Indian Rupees (¥} which is also the Company’s functional currency and all amount
are reunded to the nearest lacs and two decimals thereof, excapt when otherwise indicated.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where 2 newly-issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision io an
existing Ind AS requires a changs in the acceunting policy hitherts in use.

SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates, judgements and assumpticns

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to make judgement, estimales and
assumptions that affect the applicafion of accounting palicies and the reporied 2amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and the disclosue of contingent liabilities at the end of reporting period.Altheugh these estimates are based on the management's
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertanity about these assumptions and estimates couid resull in the outcomes
requiring a malerial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabfities in futura periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engeing basis. Revisions to the accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates are known or matarialized. ’

Some of the judgements, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of
assels and liabilities are:

a) Eair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received upon selling of an assst or paid upon transfer of a liability
in 2n orderly fransaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at ihe measurement date under current market conditions
{i.e., an exil price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When
the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets,
they are determinad using a varisty of valuation techniquas that include the use of valuation models. The inpuis to these models
are iaken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk {(both own and
counterparty), funding valus adjustments, correlation and volatility.

b} Impairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation
of the amaunt and fiming of fuiure cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in cradit risk. These sslimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances. {Refer note 2.16).
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¢} Provisions and other contingunt Eabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened slament of Iitigation risk inherent
to its operations. Gases where Company can reliably measure the oufflow of economic benefits in relation to  specific case and
considers such oulflows probable, it recognises a provision against the same. Where the probability of outflow is considered
remata, or probabie, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed for the same.

o) Deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recegnised is based on an assessment of the probahility of the fulure taxable
inceme against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

e} Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE} and Intangible assets

The Company reviews its estimate of the useful life of PPE and intangible assets at each reporting date, based on the expected
utility of the PPE and intangible assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic cbsolescence that may
change the utility of PPE and intangible assets. In case of a revision of useful life, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged
over the remaining useful life of the FPE and intangible assets.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of its activities, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for classification of its assets
and liabilities as current and non-current.

Statement of Cash flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby prefit/(loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the
effects of fransactions of nen-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recsipts or payments. The cash
flows fram aperating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash compriges cash-on-hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term deposits with banks (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible inte
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Dividend

The Gempany recognises a liability to make cash distritutions 16 equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a lability on the date of
approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Beard
of Diractors.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income is recagnised when the Gompany’s right to receive the payment is established, ii is probable that the ecoenemic
benefite associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is
generally when sharehclders approve the dividend.

Interest income on all trading assets measured at FVTPL is recognised using the contraciual interest rate under interest income
and the fair value impact is recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

Interest on tax refunds or other claims where guantum of accruals cannot be ascertained with reasonable cerlainty, are
recognised as income only when revenue is virtually certain which generally coincides with receipts.

Property , plant and equipment {FPE)

PPE are staled at cost {including incidental expenses directly attricutable to bringing the asset to its working condition for is
intended use} less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attricutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for ifs intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is
capitalised only when it is probable that future econemic tenefits asseciated wilh these will flow to the Company and the cost of
item can be measured relfably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when incurred.

An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no fulure ecenomic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or less arising on de-recagnition of the asset (caloulated as the difference
between the net disposal proceads and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in the statement of profit and loss when the
assel is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separaiely are measured on initial recognition at cost and are capitalised only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow te the Company and the cost of ilem can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to inftial recognition, intangikle assets are arisd at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any).

Depreciation / Amortisation

Property, plant and equipment
Depraciation on PPE is provideo on straight-line method as per the useful lfe prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013,

All PPE individually costingZ 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Cepreciation on additions to PPE is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready for use. Depreciation on sale /
darecognition of PPE is provided for up to the date of sale / derecognition, as the case may be.

The residual values, ussful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusied prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Intangible Assets are amortised over a period of five years except website development costs which are amortised over a peried
of thrae years on a straight-line basis from the date when the assets are available for use.

The amartisation pericd and the amortisation method for these Intangibles with a finite useful life are reviewed at each financial
year-end. Changes in the expected usaful life or the expected patiern of consumption of future ecanomic benefits embodied in the
asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes
in accounting estimates.
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
The urndiscounted amount of short-term employee banefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employses {performance incentive) are recognised during the year when the employees render the service.

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obfigation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and Employee State Insurance scheme. The
Company recognises coniribution payable to the provident fund and Employse State Insurance scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheei date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the
centribution already paid. If the confribution already paid excaeds the contribution due for services recaived before the balance
shest dats, then excess is recognised as an asset fo the extent thal the pre-payment will lead to reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Defined Benefit Plan
The Gompany has definad benefit plans as Compensated absences and Gratuity for all eligible employees, the Inabllnty for which is
determined based on acluarial valuation at each yesr-end using projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, sxcluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit kability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability}, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings
through QCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measuraments are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service, cosls are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs.

The Gompany recognises the following changes in the net defined benedit obligation as an employee benefits axpense in the
statement of profit and loss:

= Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

+ Net interest expense or income

Transactions involving foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevaiing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
Iiabilities in foreign currency are converted at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of financial statements.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, & lease. That is, if the ¢ontract conveys the right
to control the use of an identiied asset for a pericd of time in exchange for cansideration.

Company as a lessce

The Company applies a gingle recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities fo make lease payments and right-of-use assets reprasenting the right
to use the underlying assets.

The Cempany determineg the lease term as the non-cancellakle term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if i is reasonably certain io be exercised, or any pericds covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certain not o be exercised.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of {he lease (i.e., the date the underying asset is
available for use). Righi-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remsasurement of lease liabiities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use asseis are depreciated on a straight-ling basis over the lease term.
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Lease Liabitity

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recagnises lease liabiliiss measured at the present value of lease
payments {o be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurad to
produce inventorias) in the period in which the event or condition that friggers the payment occurs.

In caloulating the present value of lease paymenits, the Company uses its incremental borowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicitin the lsase is nat readily determinable. Aiter ihe commencement date, the amount of lease
liakilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabiliies is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or
a change in the assessment of an cption to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lsase
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contaim a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recoghition exemption o leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term Jeases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on & slraight-line basis aver the lease term.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss atiributable to the equity shareholders far the year by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year. The number of shares used in computing
diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share,
and the weighted average number of equily shares, which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
shares. In computing, dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that reduces profit per share
are included.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

a) Current tax

Current tax asseis and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation autherities in
accofdance with Income tax Act, 1961, Incoms Computation and [lsclostre Standards and olher applicable tax laws. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax refaiing io items recognised cutside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity}. Current tax ilems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
to realise the asset and setile the liability on a net basis or simultanecusly.

k) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and kabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Defearred tax liakilities are recognised for all 1axable temporary differsnces.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused lax losses. Deferred fax assets are recognised to the exient that it is probable thal taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused fax losses
can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets ks reviewed at each reporting dale and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probakle that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of lhe deferved tax asset to be utiised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporing date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become prabable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset io be recevered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on fax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacied or substantively enactad at the reporting dats.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recagnised outside profit or Joss (aither in cther comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if z legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the defamed taxes relate to the same taxable entity.

¢} Goods and Services Input Tax Credit
Goods and Services tax inpul credit is recognised in the period in which the supply of goods or service received is recognised and
the conditions to avail the credit are fulfilled as per the underlying law.
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Provisions , contingent liabilities and assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal and cansiructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is
probable that cash outflow will be required and 2 reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
(excluding ratirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required
to settle the obiigation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

The Gomipany does not recognise a contingent liabifity but discloses its exisience in the financial statements Contingent lizbility is
disclosed in case of —

+ A present obligation arising from past evenis, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
cbligation.

+ A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is pessible.

+ A possible obligation arising from past evenis, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent liabitties are reviewed at each balance sheet date,

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable ameunt of the asset. If such recaverable amount of the asset is less
than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impaimment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable
amount subject 1o a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any cortract that give rise to a finansial agsets of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of
another antity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of the instrument. All financiat
assets are recognized at fair value on inttial recegnition, except for trade recesvablas which are initially measured at transaction
price. Transaction costs ihat are directly attributable te the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are
not at fair value through profit of logs, are added te the fair value on inilial recognition, Financial assets, which are not carried at
amortised cost of fair value through other compsehensive income are subsequently fair valued ibrough profit or loss,

Derecognition
The Gompany derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asseis expires or it
transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets to another entity.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categeries of financial assets requires judgament, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and ihe assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different
levels of allowances,

The Company measures Expected Credit Loss {(ECL) for financial insiruments based on historical trend, industry practices and
the business environment in which the Company operates.

If credit risks has not increase significantly 12 months ECL is used to provide the impairment loss. If credit risks has increased
significantly lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is na longer a
significant increase in credit risks since initial recognition, then tha entity reveris 1o recognizing impairment loss allowance based
on 12 menth ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Gompany in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flews that the entity expects to receive.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as incomef expenses in the statement of
profit and toss.




PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2172 Financial Liabilities
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Initial recognifion and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classfied as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held-for trading or it is designated as en initial recognition to be measured at FVTPL. All financial liabilities, other than
classified at FVTPL, are classified at amortised cost in which case they are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs
and subsequently at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

Decrecegnition
A financial liability is derecognized when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Write offs
The Company undertakes write off of receivables, in full or in parl, when the amount is construed as irrecoverable after
enforcement of avallable means of resolution. The authority of write off is vested with senior officials of the Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intermal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). CODM is responsible for allocating the resources, assess the financial performance and pogition of the Company and
makes stralegic decision. The Company’s operations predominantly consist of rendering of professional /consultancy services.
Hencs there are ne reportable segmenis under Ind AS — 108,

Foreign Currency

Transactions in forsign currencies are initislly recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Foreign currency denominated monelary assets and lizbilifies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting date and exchange gains and losses ariging on settlement and restatement are recagnized in the statement of profit
and loss account.

Non-monelary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates as at
the date of initial recognition.
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 5 ; Deferred tax assets (net)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[ in Lacs] [T in Lacs|

Deferred tax assets on account of:

a) On differences between value of the employee benefits as per

financials and tax base 8.14 544
Ib) Lease liability (net of right of use assets) 2.82 313
¢) Provision for doubfful debts 0.28 1.35
d) On differénces between value of the fixed assets as per

‘financials and tax base 3.18 1.59
' Tetal deferred tax assets (il 1442 | 11.51

eferred liabilities on account of:

a) On differences between fair value of investment as per financials

and tax base 0.64 0.53
Total deferred tax liabilities (i) 0.64 0.53
Total deferred tax assets / Hiabilities) {i - ii] 13.78 10.98
Note § ; Other non current financial agsets = —

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[T in Lacs) (T in Laes)

Security deposits 0.67 0.67
Total 0.67 0.67
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 7 : Investments

Current investments

. Face |  asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Value (% in Lacs) (@ in Lacs)
{In¥&)
Quantity Amount Quantity Amount

Investment at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in India

Investment in units of M Fund

Quoted

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Direct Growth 100 1,37,423.98 471.54

Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund - Direct Growth 1,000 54,086.14 621.82

Axis Qvernight Fund - Direct Growth 1,000 46,572.82 552.15 - -

Nippon India Overnight Fund - Direct Growth 100 2,49,528.22 300.34 - -
Less: Loss for impairment allowance - - - -
Investment outside India - - - -
Total 852.49 1,093.36
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
thereof 852.49 1,083.36

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Nete 8 ; Trade receivables

Bs at Es at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
— [21nLacs] H (R in Laga) i
Secured, considered good . F
Unsecured, considered good 1,286.9¢ 4,276.18
Receivable from related parties 145470 1,103.23
Receivables- which bave significant increase in credit risk - e
Recaivablse- credit impaired 5.26
Less: Impairment zllowance 6.36
Total - 274069 5.379.52
Note 3.1 : Trade recaivable ageing
Tutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
{As at March 31, 2023)
Particulars “r_i‘ 'in_l_.a_lcsL_
Less than & months More than
& months A year 1-2 yours Zisars 3 years Total
it Undispuied Trade receivables- considered imcd 1.484.68 1,276,040 | - - - 2,740.69
Undispuied 'rade Receivahles -~ which have significant increase in - | 1 = b -
Ii|r| Undiszuted Trade Receivables — credit imzaireit =! -1 0.82 a.31 113
{viDisputed Trade Recaivablas—considered jood - -1 - .
|i¥ Disvuted Trade Receivables — whl_ch_lmlre_smmﬁcanl increase in credit -1 -
i [ Dlsnuled Trade Receivablas — credi imoalred - ! - =
Questanding fer following periods from due date of payment
(As at March 31, 2022)
Particutars {¥ in Laca]
Less than & menths | Mare than
B months _1£" |=_ 1-2 years 23 years 3 prars Total
i Undisputed Trade recaivables- considered jood 5379.52 | = - 5.379.52
(i) Undisputed Trade Recetvables — which have significant increase in ] - =
credit risk . § -
jif Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ credit imj.aired 1.85 3.81 = 5.36
(iv|Diszuted Trade Receivables—onsidered jaad - ] =1 o
Ivi Disputed Trade Receivabies — which have significant increase in credit = CRE -
vt Dispuled Trade Receivables — credit i d 3

Note 8.2 : No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other persan or debt due by firms and
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a mamber,

Note 9 : Cash and cash equivalents

Enat As at X
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[* = Lies) I¥in Lacs|
‘Balances with banks in current accounts 41.44 54,09
Bank deposits with maturity of less than 3 months (Refer note £.1) 1,000.52 10.,070.80
Total 104196 | 10.124.89
Hote: 8.1 Short term-depesits earn interest at the respective shor term deposit rates,
Note 10 ; Bank balance other than cash and cash eguivalents
As at As at
[Partiulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 1, 2022
{¥ in Lacs) {¥ In Lacs)
[Bank deposits with maturity of mare than & months and up to 12 monihs I 9322 44
[Total 932244 —
Note 11 ; Current tax assets Ineti -
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2622
{7 In Lacs) (T in Lazcs)
Net current tax assat / {Kakility} at the beginwing (a} 974.47 265.81
Currant tax expsnse (b) 454.24 877.07
Current tax paid (¢ ) 162213 1.360.54
Current tax refund (d ) B897.00
Tax related {o earlar years (e} 0.87 &11
Net current tax asset / jllabliity} at the end ja-b+c-d-¢| 1.245.49 874,47
Note 12 : Dther current assets
Az at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[Tin Lacs| TinLaes|
Unsacured, considargd gosd
Prepaid axpenses 1i5.12 98 41
Qther receivables 23.38 .19
Total 13847 127.60
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PHFL HOME LOANS A

ND SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 13 : Equily share capital

. As at Mar 31, 2023 As at Mar 31, 2022

Particulars e ———————— A
No. of shares ¥ in Lacs| No, of shares | (¥ in Lacs|

Authorised
10,084,000 equity shares of RS 10/~ each 10,600,000 100.00 10,00,000 100.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
2,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each {fully paid) 2,50,000 25.00 2,50,000 25.00
Total 26.00. 1 2500,

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 2 10/~ par share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Beard of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholdars in the ensuring Annual General Meeting, except in case
of interim dividend. In the event of ihe liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Cempany after the distribution of all preferential amounts, in propertion to their shareholding.
The Company has not allotted any share pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash, bonus shares nor has it bought any shares
during the period of five years immediately preceding the reparting date,

The Company has not:

- issued any securities convertible into equity / preference shares,
- issued any shares where calls are unpaid,

- forfeited any shares.

Note 13.1: Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding and the ameunt of share capital at the beginning and end of the year:

. As at Mar 31, 2023 ] As at Mar 31, 2022
F.'artlculars No. of shares {ZinLacs] | No.of shares 1€ in Lacs)
At the baginning of the year 2.50,000 25,00 2,50,000 25.00
Add: Share allotted during the year - - - 2
Qutstanding at the end of the year 250,000 25.00 | 2,50,000 25.00
Note 13.2: Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Gompany
 AsatMar3t, 2023 As at Mar 31, 2022
Particulars U o
arteu No. of shares | Forcemtage (ol o ot shares | T orcentage (%)
of holding of holding
PNB Housing Finance Limited {Holding Company) 2,50,000 100.00 250,000 100.G0
Total 250,000 100.00] 250,000 100.00|
Note 13.23: Detail of equity sharehelding of Promoter T
As at Mar 31, 202! | As at Mar 31. 2022
i1 9y L Lt
Particulars No. of shares % of total % Change No. of shares % of total fi. Change
| shares during the year shares during the year
PNB Housing Finance Limied 2,50,000 100 - 2,50,000 100
Total 2,50.000 i 2,50,000

Note 13.4: Dividend paid and proposed

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of the approval by the shareholders:

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2023

As at Mar 31, 2022

Amount
{¥ in Lacs|

Amount
{¥ in Lacs}

Declared and paid during the year

Dividend on ordinary shares :
Final dividend for 2022 : ¥ Nil per share
Final dividend for 2021 :Z Nil per share

Tetal dividend paid

Proposed for approval at annual general meeting {not recognised as a
liability as at March 31}

Dividend on ordinary shares :
Final dividend for 2023 : Nil per share
Final dividend for 2022 : ¥ Nil jier share
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 14 : Lease liability

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 34, 2022
®inLacs} ¥ in Lacs|
Leases 59.10 80.08
Total 59.10 | 80.08 |
Bifurcation of lease liabllity —
As at Asat 1
Particul March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
areuarg {¥inLacs| [¥ in Lacs) 1
Non-Current |  Current _Non-Current Current
Laase 35.7% 2331 | 52.10 | 20.98 |
Total 35.78 | 23.31 | 53.10 20.98 |
Movement of lease liability .
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022
| {¥in Lacs) {¥ in Lacs}
!Lease liability at the beginning of the year 80.08 97.12
Additions (b) - -
\Aceretion of interest {c ) 5.67 | 7.18
I.f’inﬂts‘ il 26865 | 24.20 |
| Modification (e ) - 1 |
gl_ﬁage liability at the end of the year {a+b+c-d-e} 59.10 | £0.08 r
Matiwity analysis of minimum undiscounted lease payments after the raporting peried
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(T in Lacs} (¥ in Lacs}
Lass than 1 year 27.20 28.64
1.5 years 38.45 . 63.88
6 - 10 years S | 1.76 |
| Total 65.65 92.29
Note 18 : Trade payables
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(# In Lacs} {¥ in Laes}
Total cutstanding dues of Micre enterprises and Small enterprises -
Total outstanding dues of craditors other than Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 25,78 18.89
Due 1o related baries - 3,888.36 |
Total 25.78 3.917.25 |
Note 15.1 : Trade payables ageing
As at March 31, 2023 i
Partiewlars {2 In Lacs)
T 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than Tetal
1 year b ye 3 ymars
i MSME = = P -
il Others 10.61 - - A1 ¢
i) Disputed dues. MSME = - |
;I'ngaﬂied dugs- Others - = - E |
v Unbilled i 1517 - - - 1617 |
| Less than More than
l 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years “fotal
i]_MSME ! - 1 = -
liij Others 3 898.58 - - 3 899.58
iy Disputed dues- MSME : - - -1 . -
liv] Disputed duss- Others - - -1 == =
v| Unbilled 17.87 - - i . 17.67

Mets 15.2: The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises, as identified by the management, under the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Developmant Act, 2008 (MSMED Act) are as under:

S.No.|Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023
{¥ in Lacs}

As at
March 21, 2022
{Z in Lacs}

Frincipal amount due and remaining unpaid

Interest due on (1] above and the unpaid interest

Interest jmid on all delayed sayment under the MSMED Act

'Pasment mada bajond the apoointed day during the year

Interest due and sajyable for the period of delay other than (3] above

Interest accrued and remanning unpaid

NENRRNN

mount of further interest remaining due and prayabls in sueceeding ysars
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 15a : Other fi ial liabilities
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{TinLacs) {¥ in Lacs)
Salary payable 84546 708.30
Provision for expenses 1,064 01 1,066.93
Other liabilities 8.70, 0.10
Total 1918.17 1,775.33
Note 16 : Other current liabilities
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Z in Lacs) {ZTih Lacs)
Stafutory dues payable (net) 382.58 411.52
Total - 362.58 411.52
Note 17 : Provisions
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(% in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
Provision for leave encashment 2233 21561
Total 32.33 21.61




PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 18 : Revenue frem operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{Z in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
Fee and commission income 24,448.87 23,075.40
Total 24 448.87 23 075.40

Note 19 : Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(® in Lacs) {Zin Lacs)
Gain / (loss) on fair value through profit or loss*
Investments 3883 228.00
Others
Interest on fixed deposits 531.92 87.06
Interest on Income Tax refund 54,23 =
Recovery of notice pay 26.84 19.55
Reversal of provisions 76,22 1.70
Total 732.04 336.31
*Breakup of Gain { {loss} on fair value through profit or loss
Realised 39.43 226.19
Unrealised 040 1.81
Total 39.83 228.00

Note 20 : Employee benefits expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{Z in Lacs) {T in Lacs)
Salaries and allowances 10,579.08 8,194.62
Contribution to prevident Fund and other funds 797.23 682.71
Staff welfare 209.71 143.45
Total 11,586.00 9.021.08
Note 21; Finance costs

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(¥ in Lacs) % in Lacs}
Interest on lease 5.67 7.16
Total 5.867 7.16
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 22 : Gther expenses

Particulars

Fee and commissicn expense
Marketing expenses

Manpower Service

Communication expenses

CSR expenses (Refer note 22.1)
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Legal and professional charges

Siaff training and recruitment expenses
Auditer's fees and expenses (Refer note 22.2)
Printing and stationery expenses
Bad-debt written off

General office expenses

Electricity and water charges
Bank-charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note 22.1 Corporate Social Responsibility expense {(CSR)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Fer the year ended
March 31, 2022

(Tin Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)
9,052.48 10,855.17
866.85 821.04
455,25 13.59
113.94 24.74
96 04 209.02
83.53 43,28
82.33 65,11
28.15 12.83
9.24 9.49
8.94 6.14
3.50
11.65 9.37
.94 1.54
0,05 0.04
4,87 0.59
; 1171872 11.872.85

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy} Rules 2021 as amended, the

Company is required te spent for CSR activities in accordance with its C8li policy. The details of the CSR expenses for the year are as under:

Particulars

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
b) Amount spent during the year

i} Construction/acquisition of any asset
iiy On purposes other than (i) above
- Contribution to various Trust/NGOs/Societies/Agencies
and utilisation thereon -

-Expenditure on administrative overheads for CSR

Total

c) Shortfall at the end of the year"

d) Total of previous years shortfall

e} Reason for shorifall™
PEHEL Foundation***

g} Nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company are in relation to:
(i) Promoting education for the differently abled
(i} Wormen empowerment
(i} Employment enhancing vocational skills, training for women
{iv} Contribution towards Prime Minister's Naticnal Relief Fund

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{% in Lacs) {Tin Lacs)

96.00 209.00

36.81 198.55
) 10.47

36.81 209.02

£59.18

36.81 198.55

*The unspent amount pertaining to the FY 2022-23 was transferred to the separate CSR unspent account in April, 2023 as per the CSR Rules.

*In relation to FY 2022-23, for optimal and proper utilization of the CSR funds, projects were reviewed and to implement the project effectively
and create long term impact, projects were revised as ongoing projects and funds for the same prajects will be utiised as planned from unspent

account in the subsequent FYs.

***Grogs amount paid to PEHEL Foundation was £57.67 Lacs during the FY 2022-23, out of which 221.18 Lacs received subsequently from

PEHEL Foundation on account of unspent amount pertaining to ongoing project.

Note : 22,2 Auditors’ fees and expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{¥in Lacs) {Tin Lacs)
Statutory audit fee 3.85 3.69
Tax audit fees 1.50 1.50
Limited review and other certifications 4.05 4.29
Out of pocket exeprnses - 0.01
Total 9.24 | 9.49
”'{ﬁs HHK\\
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PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 23 : Depreciation and amortisation

For the year ended

For the year endud

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(¥ in Lacs) (T in Lacs)
Depreciaticn on propesty, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3} 2,81 2.20
Depreciaticn on right of use {Refer Note 3) 19.72 | 19.72
Amortisation on intangible assets (Refer Note 4 17.05 18.04
Total 39.58 39.96

Note 24 : Taxes
The comgonents of tax expense are:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{% in Lacs) {T in Lacs)

Cument tax 438,56 854,10
Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior years 0.87 511
Deferred tax relating 1o origination and reversal of temporary differences {2.80) 337
|Total 436.63 662.58
Current tax 439,43 659.21
Deferred tax {2.80) 337

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory income {ax rate for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31,

2022 is as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(€ in Lacs) {¥in Lacs)
Prefit before income taxes 1.830.94 2,470.66'
Enacted tax rate in India (%) 2517% 2517%
Computed expected tax expenses 460.81 621.82
Increasef{decrease} in taxes on account of
"Effect of non-taxable income {0.10} (0.45}
Effect of non-deductible expenses 31.55 58.37
Additional allowances for tax purpose {4.48) (8.68)
Effect of deductible expenses on actual payment basis
Cthers
Deduction under section 80JJAA (49.23) {16.95)
Adjustment an aceount of tax relaled lo earlier years 0.87 5.11
|Total current tax expense 438.43 £§59.21
Qther comprehensive income
Tax expense on re-measurement gains/ [losses| on defined benefit rlan 15,68 122.97)
Total tax on other comprehensive income 115.68) [22.97)

Note 25 : Earniny per share

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Units March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

¥ in Lacs) {% in Lacs)
Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding Number 250,000 2,50,000
Prafit after tax available for shareholders (2 in Lacs) 1,394 .31 1,808.08
Basic & diluted eaming per share {In3) 557.72 723.23
Nominal value per share {In¥) 1000 10.00




PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 26 : Disclosure required pursuant to Ind AS -36 “Impairment of assets"

The Cempany has caried out impairment test on its fixed assets as on the date of Balance Shest and the Management is of the opinion that there is no
asset for which provision for impairment is required to be made as per Ind AS - 36 Impairment of Assets.

Note 27 : Operating Segment informatizg

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering of professional /consultancy services including sourcing, marketing, promaeting, publicising,
advertising, soliciting, distributing any kind of financial instruments or classes of insurance product, syndicated cradit products , investment products and
wealth products, Hence there are no reportacle segments under Ind AS - 108 notified by the Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, The Campany
operates with in India and does not have operaticns in economic environments with different risks and returns, hience it is considered operating in single
geographical segment, There are one of more customer from which revenue in proportion of total revenue is more than 10% as tabulaied below:

. | o, of Total As at As at

Particulars revenus March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(¥ in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)

Revenue from fees and commission income
Cusromer 1 4317 10,106.60
Cusromer 2 10.36 2.425.00
Cusromer 3 14.4% 3,375.00
Cusromer 4 10.25 2,400.00
Gusromer 1 56.49 13,565.49

Note 28 ; Contingent liabilities and commitments
i} Contingent liabilities in respect of Income-tax of ¥ 3,106,81 Lacs (Previous year ¥ NIL} is disputed, out of which 2 3,078.86 Lacs is subject to
reciification of asesment order passed by the assesing officer and appeal has been filled for the remaining amount. The Company expects the
demands to be set aside by the appellate authority and hence no additional provision is considerad necessary.

iiy Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is NIL (previous year ¥ NIL)
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Naote 29 : Related Party Disclesure

Pursuant {o Ind AS-24 "Related Party Disclosures”, following parties are 1 be ireatad as related partiss:

Naime of the Related Party Nature of relationship
\iy PNB Housing Finance Limited |Helding Comgany

i} Pehel Foundation

|Fellow subsidiars

{iii) Purjab National Bank Limited

{iv) Mr. Girish Keusgi {Directer) {w.e.f Octeber 21,2022)

(v Mr. Hardayal rasad Dlredar-
1vil M. Deefika Gupta Padhni | Director

Enterprise having significant influence

Kay Management Persennel & Key Management Personnel
of holding Company

Parsennel of holding Comi:any

Key Management Personnel iKMP

i, M. Amit Singh |D|rec:tor| w.ef January 22 2022\

Key Management Personnel

wm Mr. Pankaj Jain :Director) Iw.e.f December 07,2021

Kej Management Parsannel

[iix: Mr. Sunil Kaul

Key Management Personnel of holding Comerany

|x! Mr. Neeraj Vyas

Key Management Pérsonnel of holding Comesany

"lxn Mr, Kagpil Mod|_

Key Management Personnel of holding Comaans

Lixii: Mr. Atul Kumar Goel [w.e.f April 28, 2022

cixiii: Mr. Diliz Kumar Jain iw.e.d November 04,2022,

“|Key Management Personnel of holdung Compan;

Key Manaiiement Personnel of holding Comgan

[ixiv: Mr. Binod Kumar iw. e.f January 12,2022
(xv) Anshul Bhargava (Dlrecter}"""

Key Management Personnel of holding Cemgany

Key Management Parsonngl

{xvi} Rajan Suri {Directory

Key Management Parsonnel

Ixvii) Rajnish Karnatak ™

Key Management Parsornel of holding Company

{iovill; Mr. CH. S S Mallkasunarae® =+

Kes Management Personna! of holding Comizany

| {(xix) Mr. Sanjay Jain

Key Management Personne| of holding Cempany

H{xx) Mr. Vinay Gupia (w.e.f Oclober 26, 2022}

I{exiy Mr. Kaushal Mithani fw.e.f Apxil 8, 2022+

Key Management Personnel of holding Company

Key Management Personnel of halding Company

|{xxil) Mr. Kapish Jain® e

Key Management Personnel of holding Company

* Ceased {o be a Key Management Personnel & Key Management Personnel of halding Company w.e.f October 20, 2422,

** Ceased o be a Key Management Personnel w.e.f November 24, 2022

*** Ceased fo be a Key Management Personne! of holding Company w.e.f Ocicher 21, 2022
***Ceased to be a Key Management Personnel w.e.f June 11, 2021

“Ceased to be a Key Management Personnsh w.a.f Dacember 7, 202°

*Ceased to be a Key Management Personnel of holding Cempany w.e.f October 21, 2021

wrerCeased to be a Key Management Personnel of holding Company w.e.f Feburary 1, 2022
e Ceased to be Key Management Persennal of helding Company w.e.f August 23, 2022
wrmnkat Ceased to be a Key Management Personnel of holding Company w.e.f Apnil 7, 2022

The nature & volume of transactions of the Company during the year, with the abaove related parlies were as follows. These transactions were carried out in

ordinaiy course of business and were at arm's lenath brice.

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[T in Lacs) (¥ in Lacsi

PNB Houging Finance Limited
Expenses

Rent

Fes and commission

Other pavments
Reimbursement/settlement of expenses

Income
Fzes and commission income

Outstanding Balance
Receivable({net)

PEHEL Foundation
Donation

Outstanding Balance:
Receivabla(net)

Punjab National Bank Limlted*

Fixed Deposits made
Fixed Beposits mallrmgt

Income
Interest income of fixed deposits

Expenses
Bank charges

24.71 22.46
8,947.00 10,646,08

51.48 638.73

13,565.48 10,106.60

{1,454.70) 2,795.03

57.97 188.55

2118

2,800.00
2,800.00

&.00 0.01

*Excludes routine banking transactions and running current account balance with Punjab National Bank Limited as at War 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
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PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 30: Disclosure in respect of Employee Benefits:

In accerdance with Indian Accounting Standards on "Employee Benefits” (Iind AS 19}, the following disclosure have been made:

Note 30.1: The Company makes contributions towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payrall cost to the retiremen
benefit plan to fund the benefits, The contribution has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss which are included

under “Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds” in Note 20.

. Current Year Current Year
Particulars X
(T in Lacs) {Tin Lacs)
Contribution to Provident Fund and Cther Funds 797.23 682.11

Note 30.2 : Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. For employees on the Company's paysoll the scheme is funded and the same is managed by Kotak Mahindra
life insurance limited. Feor contractual employees the liabilty is unfunded. The liability of Gratuity is recognised on the basis of

actuarial vajuation,

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit ebligation for gratuity were carried
out as at March 31, 2023. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service

cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan

Interest rate rigk: A fall in the discount rate, which is linked te the Govemment Securities rate, will increases the present value of
the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets

depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salary of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level may increase the plan's liability.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have

any longevity risk.

GRATUITY LIABILITY

Change in present valug of obligation

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

{¥in Laes) (¥ inn Lacs) |
|Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 245 .86 242.64
Interesi cost 18.21 15.84
|Current service cost 92.84 82.80
Past Service cost including curtailment gains/losses 0.59 -
Benefits paid {17.19) (0.17)
\Actuarial gain / (loss} on obligation 73.03 91.25
Present value of obligafion as af the end of year 271.28 249.86
Change in fair value of plan assets®
| For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

¥ in Lacs) (¥in Lacs)
Fair Value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year 280.04 263.04
Actual return en plan assets 9.62 17.17 |
Benefits paid {17.19) {0.17)
Fair Value of plan assels as at the end of year 27246 280.04 |
Funded status 572 30,18 |
Unfunded status {4.53) . -
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Expense recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(¥ in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs)

Current service cost 92.84 82.80
:jlnterest cost 18.21 15.84
|Past Service cost including curtaiment gainsAlosses 0.59 -
Expected return on plan assets {20.33) {17.47)
|Expenses recognised in the statement of profit & losses 91,31 81.47
[Remeasurerneni gain or (losses) in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI} 62,32 91.25
Expected contribution for the next financial year is¥ 141,68 lacs.
Assumptions

Forthe year ended | For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
[®in Lacs) 1% in Lacs)

a) Discounting Rate 7.38% 7.26%

b) Future salary increase 7.08% 7.00%

c) Retirement Age 80 60

|d) Mortality Table

IALM (2012-14) 1ALM (2012-14)

Maturity profile of defined benefits obligation

i For the year ended | For the year ended
IParti(:ulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

i [¥in Lacs] (Zin Lacs)
|With in the next 12 months 11.41 0.75
above 7 vear and upto 5 years 48.73 £0.46
above 5 year 211.14 198,66

Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit abligation™

-For the year ended
- March 31, 2023
Particulars (Zin Lacs!
Discount Rate | Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% increase | 0.6% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation 115.687) 17.19 17.17 (1 5.79)1
For the year ended
) March 31, 2022
Particulars %in Lacs|
Discount Rate Future salary increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% increase | 0.5% decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% decrease
Imgact on defined benefit abl igation (15.22.'! 16.72 16.68 (15.32)

*Sensitivities due to moerality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these are not calculated.
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{b)

{c}
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(e}

PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 31 : Fair value measurement
The principles and techniques of fair value measurement of both financial and non-financial instrument are as follows :

Valuation principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction ir the principal (or most
advantageous} market at the measurement dale under curent market conditions {i.e., an exit price), regardiess of whether thal price is directly
observakble or estimated using a valuation technigue.

Valuation governance
The Company’s fair value methodelogy and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and sther procedures to ensure
appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy.

Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy
The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by favel of the fair value hierarchy

(¥ in Lacs|

As at March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investments

Mutual funds 852.48 3 452 49
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (a} 852.49 852.49
Assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis - - -
Total assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis {b) - - -
Total assets measurad at fair value (a}+{b) 852.49 : = 852,49
Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Total liabilities measured at fair value through prefit or loss {FYTPL) = - - - -
As at March 31, 2022 - Level 1 Level2  Leveld Total
Assets measured at fair value onh a recurring basis
Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Investments

Mutual funds 1,093,386 - - 1.093.36
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (a) 1,093.36 = - 1.093.36
Assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis - -
Total assets measured at fair value on a non recurring basis {b) - = - -
Total assets measured at fair value {a}+{b) 1,093.36 - . 1,093.36

Liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL})

Total liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL) - - - -

Valuation Techniques : Units held in Mutual Funds are valued based on their published net asset value (NAV) and such instruments are classified
under Level 1.

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value : In accordance with Ind AS 107.29{a), fair value is not required to be disclosed in
relation to the financial instruments having short-term maturity (less than twelve months), where carrying amount {net of impairment} is a reasonable
approximation of their fair value. Hence the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents,rade receivable, other financial assets, frade payables, provisicns and other financial liabilities has not be disclosed.

There have been ne fransfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3, during the year ended March 31, 2023,




PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 32: Risk management

The Company’s business activities exposed to a variety of risks viz., market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is to
foresee the unpredictability of these risks and to address the issue in order to minimize the potential adverse effects on its financial
performance.

The Company's risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.

Note 32.1 : Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market variables.
Changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market
changes. The Board approved investment policy defines the exposure limits to a particular entity /counterparty as well as type of
securities.

Note 32.1.1 : Total market rigk exposure

As at As at
S March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 |  primary risk
(T in Lacs) {Z in Lacs) sensitivity
Carrying amount
ASSETS
Financial assets
Investments 852.49 1,093.36 Inferest rate
Trade receivables 2,740.69 5,379.52
CGash and cash equivalents 1,041.96 10,124.89
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 9,322.44 - -
Other financial assets ' 0.67 0.67
Total 13,958.25 16,598.44
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 25.78 3,917.25
Lease liabilities 59.10 80.08
Other financial liabilities 1,918.17 1,775.33
Total 2,003.05 577266

Note 32.1.2 : Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial
instruments. The Company’s policy is to monitor positions cn a reguiar basis and hedging strategies are used (if required) to ensure
positions are maintained within the established limits.

The following fables asses the sensilivity of the assets over the profit and loss with change in interest rates.

(T in Lacs)
Increase / I
. . i Sensitivity of
Areas Financial year (dec_reas«Ie) in profit & (loss)
basis points
2022-23 50 bps / (50} bps 0.187(0.18)
Investments 2021-22 50bps/(50)bps |  ©.29/(0.29)




Note 32.2 : Credit risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk
arises primarily frem financial assets such as trade receivables, investments and other financial assets,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses the loss allowance {if any) for certain dlass of financial assets based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business envirecnment in which the Company operates.

Trade receivables

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables which is summarised in table below.
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always
been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of
customers to which the Company granis credit terms in the normal sourse of business. The Company uses expected credit loss model
to assess the impairment loss. The Company uses the historical experience for customers to compule the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues.

{iy Provision for expected credit losses
The Company measures Expected Credit Loss (ECL) for financial instruments based on historical trend, industry practices and the

business environment in which the Company operates

For financial assets, a credit loss is the difference between:
(a) the contractual cash flows that are due to an entity under the contract; and
(b) the cash flows that the entity expecis to receive

The Company recognises in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date in accordance with Ind AS 109.

In determination of the allowances for credit losses on trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedience by
computing the expected credit losses based on ageing matrix, which has taken into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for ferward looking information.

{i) The movement of Trade Receivables are as follows:

As at | As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(¥ in Lacs) % in Lacs)
Trade Receivables (Gross) 2,741.82 5,384.88
Less: Expected Credit Loss 1.13 5.36
Trade Receivables (Net) — = 2,740.69 5.379.52 |

Investments and other financial agsets

Credit risk arising from investments and balances with banks is limited because the counter parties are banks and approved funds
managed by professionals fund managers with high credit worthiness. The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the
institution, mariet reputation and service standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. Investments
of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties. The maximum exposure to credit risk for these components as at March
31, 2023 is ¥ 11,216.89 lacs (March 31, 2022 is ¥ 11,218.25 lacs).

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The

Company has no outstanding borrowings. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.
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Note 33: key ratios

Particulars Aaat At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current Ratio 6.49 2.88
Debt-Equity Ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Not Applicable Not Applicakle
Return on Equity Ratic 11.31% 16.95%
Inventory turnover ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable
Trade Receivables turnover ratio 0.68 0.98
Trade Payables turmnaover ratio 0.01 1,43
Net Capital turnaver ratio 977.95 923.02
Net profit ratio 5.54% 7.72%
Retum on Capital employed 14.04% 21.24%
Retumn on investment 5.82% 3.73%

Explaination to the ratios:

Current Ratio: Current assets (numerator) include trade receivables, short term investments, cash and cash equivalents, and
other current assets. Current liability (denominator} incudes trade payables, lease liability, other financial liabilities, provisions and

statutery dues. Current ratio has primarily increased on account decrease in trade payables.

Return on Equity Ratio: Return {(numerator) is net profit earned afier tax. Average sharedholder's equity (dencminater) includes
average of opening and closing equity share capital and reserves. Returmn on equity decrease due to decrease in profitability.

Trade Receivables turnover ratio: Net credit sales (numerator) is trade receivable. Average trade receivable {denominator)
include average of opening and closing trade reaceivables.Trade recsivable turnover ratio has decreases on account collection

from debtors /decrease in receivables.

Trade Payable turnover ratio: Net credit purchase (numerator) is trade payable. Average trade payable (denominator] include
average of opening and closing trade payables. Trade payable decreases on account of payment to creditors.

Net Capital turnover ratio: Revenue from operations (numerator} is divided by shareholders equity (denominator). The Capital
turnover ratio has increased on account of increase in revenue from operations.

Net profit ratio: Net profit for the year (numerator) is divided totaf revenue for the year (denominator). The net profit ratio has
decreased on account of decrease in prefitabilty on account of increase in operating expenses.

Return on Capital employed: Eaming before interast and taxes (numerétor) is divided by the capital employed (denominator}.
Capital employeed is calculated by subtracting current liabilities from tofal assets. Return on Capital employed has decreased on

account of decrease in profitability,

Return on Investment: Income on investment {numerator} is divided by the cost of investment (denominater). The return on
investment has increase on account of increase in average oustanding investment and better yeild.

Note 34: Relationship with Struck off Companies

Nature of transactions with Balance Relationship with

Name ofstruck off Comparny struck-off Company autstanding the Struck off
NIL Investments in securities - NA
NIL Receivables - NA
NIL Payables NA
NIL Shares held by stuck off company - NA
NIL Other outstanding balances - NA
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Note 35: Other disclosures:
(i) There is no income which is required to be recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(if} The Coempany has not been declared willful defaulter by any Banks/Financial Institutions.
(i} The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual currency during the year.
{iv) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988} and the rules made thereunder.

Note 36: Amendents issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
8tandards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

(i) Ind AS 1 — Material accounting policies - The amendments mainly related to shifting of disclosure of erstwhile “significant
accounting policies” in the notes to the financial statements te material accounting policy information requiring companies to
reframe their accounting policies to make them more “entity” specific. This amendment aligns with the “material’ concept already
required under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

(iijind AS 8 = Definition of accounting estimates - The amendments specify definition of ‘change in accounting estimate’ replaced
with the definition of ‘accounting estimates’.

{iiiy Ind AS 12 — The amendment clarifies that in cases of transactions where equal amounts of assets and liabilities are
recognised on initial recognition, the initial recognition exemption does not apply. Also, I a company has not yet recognised
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities or has recognised deferred tax asset or
deferred tax liabifity on net basis, that company shall have 1o recegnise deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities on gross
basis based on the carrying amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities existing at the beginning of 1 April 2022.

The MCA vide its notification dated 24th March, 2021 had introduced the concept of audit trails, applicable from April 1, 2023, by
inserting proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. It mentioned that every company which uses accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each
and every fransaction, creating an edit log of each change made in books of account along with the date when such changes were made
and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

Note 37: Expenditure in foreign currency

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(¥ in Lacs) {¥ in Lacs)
Other expenses 1.87

Note 38: Previous year figures have besn rearranged / regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with current year's classification
disclosure.

For B.R. Maheswari and Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FR No : 001035N/N500050

e (80 oM .
Ut (g 5 M
R — 1) ; V‘ ||l I r'fl

Akshay Maheshwari LN Girish Kousgi At Sing

Partner . S0 A Director Director
Membership No: 504704 DIN: 08524205 DIN: 09474114
Place: New Delhi

Date * May 10, 2023



NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixth (6th)
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Members of PHFL Home Loans and Services
Limited (“Company”) will be held on
Wednesday, July 05, 2023 at 12:00 Noon at
the registered office of the Company
situated at Flat No 207 & 209, 2nd Floor
Antriksh Bhawan, 22, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
New Delhi - 110001, India to transact the
following business(es):-

ORDINARY BUSINESS(es):

Item No. 1: To receive, consider and adopt
the Audited Financial Statements for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 along
with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the
following resolution with or without
modification as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT the pursuant to the
provisions of Section 134 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,
for the time being in force), the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company
including Balance Sheet as at March 3],
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statements for the Financial Year
ended on March 31, 2023, together with the
notes thereto, along with Independent
Auditors’ Report thereon and the report of
the Board of Directors along with annexures
be and are hereby received, considered and
adopted.”

Item No. 2: To appoint a Director in place of
Mr. Amit Singh (DIN: 09474114) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offer himself
for re-appointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the
following resolution with or without
modification as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Amit

Singh (DIN: 09474114), Director of the
Company, who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment,
be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director
of the Company liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 3: To consider and approve re-
appointment of B R Maheshwari & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company and to fix their
remuneration.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the
following resolution with or without
modification as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force) and pursuant to the
recommendations of Board of Directors of
the Company, approval of the Members of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to
re-appoint B R Maheshwari & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants (Registration No.
001035N/N500050) as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a second term
of three consecutive years, to hold office
from the conclusion of 6th (Sixth) Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) till the conclusion
of the 9th (Ninth) AGM to be held in the year
2026, at a remuneration to be decided by
the Board of Directors of the Company in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS (es):

Item No. 4: To appoint Mr. Girish Kousgi
(DIN: 08524205) as Director of the
Company liable to retire by rotation.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the
following resolution with or without
modification as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Rules
made thereunder, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof
for the time being in force), applicable laws
and the Articles of Association of the



Company, Mr. Girish Kousgi (DIN:
08524205), who was appointed as an
Additional Director of the Company w.e.f.
October 22, 2022 and whose term of office
expires at the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing
from a member of the Company under
Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his
candidature for the office of a Director, be
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company, whose office shall be liable to
retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient to give
effect to the above resolution.”

Item No. 5: To appoint Mr. Vinay Gupta (DIN:
10161211) as Director of the Company liable
to retire by rotation.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the
following resolution with or without
modification as an Ordinary Resolution:

Date: June 06, 2023
Place: New Delhi

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the
provisions of Section 152, 160, 161 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Rules
made thereunder, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof
for the time being in force), applicable laws
and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Vinay Gupta (DIN: 10161211),
who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company w.e.f. May 12, 2023
and whose term of office expires at the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a member
of the Company under Section 160(1) of the
Act proposing his candidature for the office
of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as
a Director of the Company, whose office
shall be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of
Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be considered
necessary, desirable or expedient to give
effect to the above resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited

sd/-

Deepika Gupta Padhi
Director

DIN: 08002469



NOTES

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY, OR WHERE THAT IS
ALLOWED, ONE OR MORE PROXIES, TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. PROXY FORM IN ORDER TO
BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY
STAMPED, SIGNED AND COMPLETED IN
ALL RESPECTS MUST BE DEPOSITED
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY  ATLEAST 48 HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON
BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT
EXCEEDING FIFTY IN NUMBER AND
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT
MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY.
HOWEVER, A MEMBER HOLDING MORE
THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A
SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH
PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY
FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR
SHAREHOLDER. EVERY MEMBER
ENTITLED TO VOTE AT THE MEETING,
OR ON ANY RESOLUTION TO BE
MOVED THEREAT, SHALL BE ENTITLED
DURING THE PERIOD BEGINNING 24
HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING AND ENDING WITH THE
CONCLUSION OF THE MEETING, TO
INSPECT THE PROXIES LODGED, AT
ANY TIME DURING THE BUSINESS
HOURS OF THE COMPANY, PROVIDED
THAT NOT LESS THAN THREE DAYS®
NOTICE IN WRITING OF THE
INTENTION SO TO INSPECT IS GIVEN
TO THE COMPANY.

No person shall be entitled to attend and
vote at the meeting as a duly authorized
representative of corporate member
which is a shareholder of the Company,
unless a certified copy of the resolution
appointing him/her a duly authorized
representative, is delivered at the
Registered Office of the Company on or
before the time fixed for the

10.

commencement of the meeting.

The Statement pursuant to Section 102
of the Act, relating to the Special
Business under Item Nos. 4 to 5 of the
Notice, is annexed hereto.

The Register of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel and their
shareholding, maintained u/s. 1770 and
the Register of Contracts or
arrangements in which the Directors are
interested, maintained u/s189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and all other
documents referred to in the Notice will
be available for inspection by the
members of the company at Registered
office of the Company during business
hours 10:00 AM. (IST) to 06:00 PM.
(IST) (except Saturday and Sunday) up
to the date of AGM.

The Chairman of the Meeting shall be
appointed in terms of the provision of
the Section 104 of the Companies Act,
2013.

In case of Joint holders attending the
Meeting, only such joint holder who is
higher in the order of name will be
entitled to vote.

Members who hold shares in
dematerialized form are requested to
bring their Client ID and DP ID number
for easy identification and attendance at
the meeting.

Members/proxies attending the meeting
are requested to bring their duly filled
admission/ attendance slip at the
meeting as attached with the Notice of
AGM

A Route Map along with Prominent
Landmark for easy location to reach the
venue of AGM is annexed with the notice.

The Annual Report along with Notice of
Annual General Meeting will be sent to
those members / beneficial owners,
whose name will appear in the register of
members / list of beneficiaries received
from the depositories as on closing
hours of June 06, 2023.



1. Members holding shares in physical form 12. The Annual Report together with the

are requested to notify any change in Notice of the Annual General Meeting is
their address, Bank Account details and also being hosted on the website of the
e-mail IDs etc. to the Company / RTA Company www.phfl.com.

and Members, whose shareholding is in
electronic format are requested to direct
change of their address, e-mail id and
updation of bank account details to their
respective depository participants.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited

sd/-

Deepika Gupta Padhi
Date: June 06, 2023 Director
Place: New Delhi DIN: 08002469



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(PURSUANT TO SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT?”))

ITEM NO. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company had
appointed Mr.  Girish Kousgi (DIN:
08524205) as an Additional Director
(Non-Executive Director) of the Company
with effect from October 22, 2022. Pursuant
to Section 161 of the Act an Additional Direc-
tor appointed by the Board shall hold office
up to the date of the AGM. The Board of
Directors further recommends to the share-
holder, appointment of Mr. Girish Kousgi
(DIN: 08524205) as Director of the Compa-
ny liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has received from him all stat-
utory disclosures / declarations including, (i)
consent in writing to act as director in Form
DIR-2, pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 (“the Appointment Rules”) and
(ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the
Appointment Rules to the effect that he is
not disqualified under Section 164 of the
Act. The Company has also received a notice
under Section 160 of the Act from a
member, intending to nominate Mr. Girish
Kousgi to the office of Director of the Com-

pany.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Per-
sonnel of the Company / their relatives
other than Mr. Girish Kousgi are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or other-
wise, in the resolution set out at Iltem No. 4.

The Board recommends the resolution set
forth in Item no. 4 of the Notice as an Ordi-
nary Resolution. Brief profile and other
details of Mr. Girish Kousgi pursuant to the
Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Insti-
tute of Company Secretaries of India is
furnished in Annexure - A of the Notice.

ITEM NO. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company has
appointed Mr. Vinay Gupta (DIN: 10161211) as
an Additional Director (Non-Executive
Director) of the Company with effect from
May 12, 2023. Pursuant to Section 161 of the
Act an Additional Director appointed by the
Board shall hold office up to the date of the
AGM. The Board of Directors further recom-
mends to the shareholder, appointment of
Mr. Vinay Gupta (DIN: 10161211) as Director of
the Company liable to retire by rotation.

The Company has received from him all stat-
utory disclosures / declarations including, (i)
consent in writing to act as director in Form
DIR-2, pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 (“the Appointment Rules”) and
(ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the
Appointment Rules to the effect that he is
not disqualified under of Section 164 of the
Act. The Company has also received a notice
under Section 160 of the Act from a
member, intending to nominate Mr. Vinay
Gupta to the office of Director.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Per-
sonnel of the Company / their relatives
other than Mr. Vinay Gupta are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or other-
wise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5.

The Board recommends the resolution set
forth in Item no. 5 of the accompanying
Notice for the approval of members as an
Ordinary Resolution. Brief profile and other
details of Mr. Vinay Gupta pursuant to the
Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Insti-
tute of Company Secretaries of India is
furnished in Annexure-A.



ADDITIONAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDED FOR APPOINTMENT AS

REQUIRED UNDER THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2 ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF

COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA

Name of Directors

Mr. Amit Singh
(DIN: 09474114)

Mr. Girish Kousgi
(DIN: 08524205)

Mr. Vinay Gupta
(DIN: 10161211)

Date of Birth 10-11-1977 14-09-1970 07-11-1979
Age 145 Years 52 Years 43 Years
Date of first Appointment 20-01-2022 22-10-2022 12-05-2023

on the Board

Qualifications

MBA degree in Human
Resource from ICFAI
Business School, Mumbai

Executive Master’s
diploma in business
administration from
Indian Institute of
Commerce and Trade

Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of
India

Experience and Nature

As per brief profile

As per brief profile

As per brief profile

of expertise in specific attached attached attached
functional area
Past Remuneration Nil Nil Nil

Terms and conditions of
appointment/ re-
appointment including
remuneration to be paid

Appointment as a
Non-Executive Director,
liable to retire by rotation

Appointment as a
Non-Executive Director,
liable to retire by rotation

Appointment as a
Non-Executive Director,
liable to retire by rotation

Shareholding in the 1 (As nominee of PNB Nil 1 (As nominee of PNB
Company Housing Finance Limited) Housing Finance Limited)
Relationship with other None None None

Directors/ KMPs

Directorships / Committee  Directorship: Directorship: Directorship:

Membership and PEHEL Foundation 1. PNB Housing Finance PEHEL Foundation

Chairmanship held in other
Companies

Chairmanship of Board
Committees: NIL

Membership of Board
Committees: NIL

Limited
2. PEHEL Foundation

Chairmanship of Board
Committees:NIL

Membership of Board

Committees:
PNB Housing Finance
Limited

a. Corporate Social
Responsibility
Committee

b. Credit Committee of the

Board

c. Risk Management
Committee

d. Stakeholders
Relationship Committee

e. IT Strategy Committee

Chairmanship of Board
Committees: NIL

Membership of Board
Committees: NIL

No. of Board Meetings 5 (Five) 3 (Three) Nil
attended during the
Financial year 22-23
Details of remuneration sought  Nil Nil Nil

to be paid (per annum)

Date: June 06, 2023
Place: New Delhi

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PHFL Home Loans and Services Limited

sd/-

Deepika Gupta Padhi

Director
DIN: 08002469



Brief Profile:

Mr. Amit Singh Chief People Officer at PNB
Housing Finance Limited, is a seasoned HR
professional who brings in 18 years of rich
and diverse experience in building
performance-led, competitive teams for the
successful functioning of fast-growing
organizations. Mr. Amit has diverse expertise
across businesses like Asset Management,
Investment Banking, Securities, Wholesale
Banking, Project Finance, Risk, Private
Equity, Shared Services and Information
Technology in his elaborated career so far.
He is known for his extensive experience in
leading HR transformation journeys and
creating value for Business enterprises.

Mr. Amit plays a crucial role within PNB
Housing Finance leadership team in
supporting the organization’s growth and
managing People strategy for the Company.
He leads the HR function, which includes
learning & development, talent acquisition,
developing people-centric organizational
development priorities including, talent
management & development, coaching,
capability building, performance & reward
strategy, HR digital strategy and sustaining
an inclusive work culture for business
growth. He is also spearheading the CSR
initiatives for the company and forwarding
its agenda of nation building.

Prior to joining PNB Housing Finance, he was
associated with prominent financial
institutions, including SBI Mutual Fund
where he led the HR department and IDFC
Bank, where he was Director & Business HR
Head. He has also served stints at leading
companies such as TCS and Blue Star
InfoTech. He holds an MBA degree in Human
Resource from |ICFAIlI Business School,
Mumbai.

Mr. Girish Kousgi is the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the PNB
Housing Finance Limited. He holds an
executive master’s diploma in business
administration from Indian Institute of
Commerce and Trade. He has over 21 years
of experience in the financial services sector.
Previously, he was associated with Can Fin
Homes Limited as managing director and
chief executive officer, Tata Capital Financial
Services Limited as head retail - credit & risk,
IDFC Bank Limited as executive vice
president and ICICI Bank Limited as joint
general manager.

Mr. Vinay Gupta is the Chief Financial Officer
of the PNB Housing Finance Limited. He is
responsible for overall finance, treasury and
investor relations function in our Company.
He has passed the examination for a
bachelor’'s degree in commerce from
University of Delhi. He is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Previously, he was associated with SBI Cards
and Payment Services Limited, GE Capital
Services Limited and Price Waterhouse.



PROXY FORM

Form MGT-11
Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

CIN: U67200DL2017PLC322468

Name of the Company:
Registered Office:

PHFL HOME LOANS AND SERVICES LIMITED
Flat No 207 & 209, 2nd Floor Antriksh Bhawan, 22,

Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi -110001

Name of member(s):

Registered Address:

E-mail ID:

Master Folio No.:

DP ID*:

CLIENT ID*:

I/We being the member (s) of

shares of the

above-named Company, hereby appoint:

S.No. Name Address

E-mail ID Signature or failing him

or failing him

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 6th
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, July 05, 2023 at 12:00
Noon (IST) at the registered office of the Company situated at Flat No 207 & 209, 2nd Floor
Antriksh Bhawan, 22, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi - 110001, or any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:




Res?llgtion Description Assent  Dissent

Ordinary Business(es)

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2023 along with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Amit Singh
(DIN: 09474114) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and approve re- appointment of B R
Maheshwari & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their
remuneration.

Special Business(es)

4. To appoint Mr. Girish Kousgi (DIN: 08524205) as
Director of the Company liable to retire by
rotation.
5, To appoint Mr. Vinay Gupta (DIN: 10161211) as
Director of the Company liable to retire by
rotation.
Signed this day of 2023
Affix One
Signature of Shareholder Rupee
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy

Notes:

1.  This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.

2. Shareholders may give their assent or dissent against each resolution.

*Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form.



ATTENDANCE SLIP

Member(s) or his/ her/ their proxy(ies) are requested to present this form for admission, duly
signed in accordance with his/her/their specimen signature(s) registered with the Company.

opo* | | [ | ||| ]| |Master Folio No | |

Cienti>'] [ [ [ T [ 1 [ ]  [No of Shares | |

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE MEMBER:

| hereby record my presence at the at the 6th Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on Wednesday, July 05, 2023 at 12:00 Noon (IST) at the registered office of the Company
situated at Flat No 207 & 209, 2nd Floor Antriksh Bhawan, 22, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New

Delhi - 110001, or any adjournment thereof.

Please tick in the box

|:| Members |:| Proxy

Name of the Proxy in Block Letters Member’s Signature Proxy’s Signature

(if applicable)

* Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form.
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207, 209, 2nd Floor Antriksh Bhawan
22, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi - 110001
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